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Abstlact

Salah al-Din Youssef sbn Nagm al- Dm Ayyub ibn Shady |s an orihcdox Sunm
Muslim, to whom the Ayyubid state attributed. his family was a decedent of the
Kurdish, originated in a town called Doween in Alkri.

His position in Egypt was far from secure. As the general of Nur al-Din, holding
Cairo by force of Zangid arms, he was regarded with deep suspicion by the
Fatimids, who tried to oust the inexperienced. young vizier by encouraging a
revoit of their Sudanese palace guards. The insurrection was easily crushed,
however, leaving the Fatimids with no pretense of military support. Salah al-Din
then abolished Fatimid rule in 1171 A.D, remtroducmg Sunni Islam as the
official religion of Egypt. The surviving Fatimid. princes and -princesses: were
carefully segregated and placed in honorable- captivity to prevent the birth of a
future claimant to a universal Shiite state. Al-Qahira was deprived of its royal
status and opened shift northward followed, resulting,. in- al- Fustat’ losing its
position as Egypt's major center of trade and production. -
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Introduction

Egypt was now, in theory, part of Nur al-Din's empire, in reality , it was firmly in
the hands of his Kurdish general, Salah ad-Din Alarmed by the growing power
of his vassal, Nur al -Din prepared to invade Egypt and establish direct Zangid
control . War between Damascus and Cairo was averted only by his sudden
death in 1174 A.D. The subsequent break up of Nur al -Din’s domain into
numerous Zangid principalities left Salah al -Din undisputed master of Egypt,
but destroyed the Muslim solidarity needed to defeat the Crusaders.

The Zangid princes of Syria were more concerned with their own short-
term needs, than with the duty of waging jihad and soon fell out among
themselves. Only Salah al -Din had the vision and determination needed
to reunite the empire of Nur al -Din against the Christians. To this goal he
dedicated the rest of his life. , C e

.As for his victories against the crusaders and the liberation of Jerusalem;

Al-Malik an —Naser Salah al-Din deserved to be identified as a hero in the
Muslim world.

This research will focus - in details- on the Ayyubide main mi!ifary structures in
Egypt like the citadels of al-Gabal, Ras- al-Gendi, and Fara'oun, in addition to
Aleppo citadel in Syria, and ‘Ajloun citadel in Jordon. ,

| - The Egyptian castles

1 - Al-Gabal Citadel

Salah al-Din's first task was to secure Cairo against Crusader attack. His
military advisors warned him that al-Fustat and al-Qahira would reguire
separate garrisons for defense. Rather than divide his army, Salah al-Din
instead devised an ambitious plan for the refortification of the entire capital. He

ordered the construction of a massive citadel on the Mugattam spur overlooking
the deserted plane between the two cities.

According to a legend recorded by al-Magrizi, the 15" — century Egyptian
‘historian, Salah al-Din chose the outcrop of the Mugattam hills as a site of his
Citadel because of its healthy air. Although the healthy climate of the Mugattam
spur was no doubt an important consideration, Salah al-Din’'s main concern was
the military advantage of the site. Iis elevated, central position dominated al-
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Fustat and al-Qahira while posing a major obstacle fo a foreign army invading
Egypt. As a futher defensive measure, the two cities were to be linked to the
new Citadel by a series of long enclosing walls. For the first time, the separate
urban centers that made up the Egyptian capital were united within a single

defensive system then completed for the eventual growth Cairo into a unified
city.

Work on the Citadel began in 1176 under the supervision of Salah al-Din's lace
controller, Qaaqush. He demolished the Fatimid mosques and tombs on the
site and started building stone walls and towers that still ring the hill. Stone for
the fortificatiors was quarried from the east side of the Citadel spur. This had
the further advantage of separating it from the rest of the Mugattam range.

The Citadel was constructed using the most up-to-date castle building
technology that had developed out of nearly 100 years of warfare against the
Crusaders. Its dressed stone walls are ten meters high and three meters thick.
Wherever possible, they are built on rock, above ground level, to prevent
undermining; the most effective means of breaching fortifications during a
medieval siege. Small, half - round towers, with inner chambers, project from
their outer fagade every 100 meters, allowing the defending garrison to direct
flanking fire against enemy soldiers trying to scale the walls. The fowers are
connected by upper ramparts, once protected by crenellation, and by interior
corridors. These coridors contain small rooms, with window-stills to admit light
and allow hidden archers to shoot at enemies from the safety of the inner walis.
The northeastern comer of the Citadel juts out from the rest of the enclosure,
dominating the pass cut between the fortress and the Mugattam hills. An
invading army could only bypass defile, which is controlled by two towers, the
burg al-Ramia and the burg al-Haddad. The Citadel initially had three major
entrances. The Bab a-Mudarrag, on its northwestern side, was the main public
entrance, giving access from the city. It was approached by a sloping ramp
road, leading to two fortified gates separated by a curving flight of step stairs cut

into the rock of the Citadel hill. Only the domed vestibule of the upper gate
survives.

The other gates are on the east and south sides of the enclosure. Both are
protected by twin towers and had bent entrance ways for maximum defense.
Their names are unknown, but the southern entrance was probably the bab al-
Qarafa, named after the burial grounds in the vicinity of the fortress. The
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eastern gate is today known by its 18" — century name, the burg al-imam. I
faces the Mugattam hills and was the entrance most exposed to enemy attack.
in order to protect it against battering rams, it was built above ground level and
was reached by way of a bridge across a 16 meter wide moat.

If ‘enemy soldiers managed to storm either of these gates, they would find
themselves within an open court, surrounded by inner walls lined with archers. ‘
Those who survived this death trap still had to make a 90 — degree turn into a
tunnel, protected by a second gate, before they could reach the interior of the
Citadel. A number of small postern gates were also located around the fortress,
enabling the defending garrison to make surprise sorties against an enemy's
position outside the walls.

Within the Citadel , the Bir Yusuef was cut 8 meters through solid limestone ,
down to the level of the Nile , supplying the fortress with it own rmpregnable
source of drinking water. Surrounding the well is an enclosed spiral staircase
with windows for light opening onto the inner shaft. The stairs descend to the
lowest level and give the well its second name, the Bir al-Halazun.

® The Citadel Under Al-Kamil

in 1207, al-Kamil son of sultan al-Adil strengthened the fortifications of Cairo.
Some of the towers of the Citadel built by Salah al-Din, such as the burg al-
Haddad and the burg al-Ramla, which controlled the narrow pass
between the Citadel and the Mugattam hills, were felt to be too small for
adequate defense. They were totally encased in new towers, forming the cores
of much larger defensive units. The original window — slits were broken open
and used as doorways leading to a new series of rooms. The new burg al-
Haddad was also equipped with machicoulis, projecting chambers with
openings that allowed defenders to drop stones or pour molten lead on an
enemy below.

The towers of the Citadel's eastern entrance, now known jointly as the burg al-
Imam were enlarged to twice their original size. A long the northern walls , a
rectangular stone platform was constructed behind the Burg as-Sahra to serve
as a base for mangonels and other missile — throwing weapons that connect
with the inner chambers of the tower .

Al — Kamil also erected a number of massive square keeps around the
perimeter of the Citadel. The square towers are filled with interior halls and
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corridors, which acted as command posts, storage areas and barracks. The,
largest of al-Kamil's square towers, is the Burg at-Turfa. Its name obviously
reflects al-Kamil's pride in its gigantic proportions, but the scale of the Burg as-
Suffa and the Burg Kirkilyann is equally impressive. In times of peace these:
spacious towers were often used as prisons housing, among others, the last of.
the Fatimids, who ended their days in confinement in the Citadel. :

Al — Kamil inherited the Ayyubid Sultanate on his father's death in 1218 A.D and.
was the first ruler of Egypt to make the Citadel his royal residence. The royal
compound of the Citadel was only half its current size in the Ayyubid period,
having a circumference of about 600 meters. The area was later enlarged by
the Mamluks, who also isolated by constructing an interior wall which divides
the Citadel into two separate enclosures. The dimensions of the northern
portion of the fortress however are largely unchanged since the time of Salah
al-Din. Here were located the military regiments stationed in the Citadel, the
arsenal and the sultan’s pigeon post. Al- Kamil had 900 homing pigeons used
to carry dispatches throughout his empire. Messages were written on thin
sheets of paper which were tied under the birds' wings. When a pigeon settled,
it was immediately brought to the sultan, who alone might detach the message.
The pigeon lofts were on a platform between the twin towers defending the
Citadel's southern entrance, which became known collectively as the Burg al-
Mattar.

2- Fara'oun (Aila) Castle
° The Castle's several names

In ancient times and exactly during the medieval ages; this castle was called
Aila castie attributing it to Aila city; that stands in front. This ancient city was
founded over the remnants of the Greco — Roman city called Aila and Ailana.
Through the lslamic eras, it was famed as a frading harbor, which connects
Egypt, Syria and northeast of the Arabian island. Since the beginning of the 19"
century A.D and until nowadays, it was attributed to Fara'on Island where it was
erected.

. The founder and foundation date
Although the castle's architectural composition is mostly similar to that of the
Ayyubid Ras al-Goundi castie in Wadi Sadr, however, the Egyptian monument
authority excavations in the island, declared that the Ayyubide epoch structures
dominated the castle's structures, but this did not disprove that the island was
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exploited in muliiple purposes through other preceding -Byzantine, Tulunide-
ages.

Contemporary historians referred that the actual beginning of constructing the
castle was through the crusades wars; especially during the reign of Beldowin |
king of Jerusalem, exactly in 510 H/ 1116 A.D. However, according to an
Ayyubide sunken naskhi foundation text over the castle's mosque, beside other
two inscriptions found on the castle's annexed struciures, Salah al-Din Al-
Ayyubi is the founder. The construction had been completed when king al-Adil
Abou Bakr brother of Salah al- Din was his viceroy in Egypt, however the direct
supervision for building was prince Ali ibn Sukhtekman an- Nasrery al-Adily.

o The castle's location
Fara'on castle stands over the small granite Fara'on lsland, encloses iwo
elevated mounds. Such unique location provides several properties, such as the
proportional height above the sea level, overlooking the main (trading,
pilgrimage, and military) routes, neighboring to abundant water source from
Taba valley, and neighboring the crusaders' aggression center.

e The historical events that connected to Fara'on Island
For its sirategic situation, this castle had a rich history. During the whole
Ayyubid epoch, this castle played a great role in the Arabian -lslamic and

crusader conflict and one of the few castles that participated in the siruggle
against the crusades.

During both Mamluk and Ottoman epochs, this castle continued in protecting
the Egyptian eastern borders, the Egyptian pilgrimage route, and the trading
caravans. In 510 H / 116 A.D, the crusaders dominated the castle and the
whole area of Alia. in 566 H / 1170 AD, was the great conquest that was led by
Salah al-Din after he had defeated the crusaders in Damietta in 565 H /
1169AD. In 578 H/ 1181 -1182 A.D, Ernat the prince of al-Kark foriress attacked
Aila city and tried to dominate the castle, but failed. During the same time, the
Arabian navy that directed to Aila Island succeeded in defeating the crusaders
who were stationed there.
e The castle's planning

it is a rooky Island, extends longitudinally, and surrounded with water from ail
sides. The island's platform is encircled with an external wall as an additional
defensive line beside the sea. The architectural structures are devastated
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according to the island's shape, as two elevated mounds and a pan in between.
Over each mound, a fire stones fortress stands.

- The northern fortification
It is a standing castle works as the main fortification, occupies the northern
mound. It is divided from the interior into two- northern and southern- sections,
these are:

1~ The first northern part encloses the fortress's main entrance, followed from
the southern side with a big water cistern at the castle's courtyard. This part's
wall is fortified by eight towers and the carrier (homing) pigeon tower inciuded.
Moreover, this part encloses several rooms; designated as residences for the
garrison's soldiers, this beside a stone quarry, from where stones were cut and
utilized in building the castle's towers and walls. Later, this quarry was
employed for draining rainwater away from the castle.

2- The southern part, it is erected on a level higher than the previous —northern-
part. This part has a bent entrance at the end of the northern part. Its wall
encloses six towers, with several residential rooms for the castle's soldiers.
These residences were composed of two stories, a small water cistern, a
kitchen, a storeroom and a prison. This section has two portals; ohe on the
southern side reaches to the supplements in the central part, and the other
portal in the western side leads to a heating furnace.

3- The central part, it is the lower area between the mounds; enclose a small
harbor for sending smail ships. Moreover, it encloses a small mosque, stable
and annexed residences, storerooms, and the castle's weapons' furnace.

- The southern fortification
It occupies the island's southern mound, connected to the external wall, which is
surrounding the island and acts as a part of it. It encloses residential vaulted
ceiling rooms, composed of two stories and defending rooms with machicoulis.
. The main entrance

The entry to the northern part was through a portal, which is reachable through
several steps, and sequent basta-s. This portal was of yellow colored limestone
courses, intertwined with granite stones in both sides. The entrance's opening is
crested with a semi circular arch, topped with a simple cornice. Mostly, this
portal once topped with the castle's foundation text,
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® The castle several suppiements

- To the southeast of the northern fortress, is the castle's mosque. It is a small
rectangular mosque, entered through a white marbie lintel portal in the northern
wall. Over the portal, there is the mosque's construction five lines text, in
sunken Ayyubide naskhi calligraphy, reads as follows:-

The first line 3 gl 13 clsily jal
The second line () U plas el
The third line (O4) & (0) laaa ga by
The fourth line (&) st pliaalf
The fifth fine (Adbass) —

Ancther supplement of the castle is the weapons furnace, which occupied the
southern side of the castle's supplements. It is entered through an 83 cm in
width portal in the western wall.

3- Sadr (Ras el-Goundi) Castle
e The Castle's name _
This castle was identified with several names; such as Sadr castle, al-Basha
castle, al-Goundi castle, al-Haj castle, Sinai castle, and Salah al-Din castle in
Sinai, recently known as al-Goundi castle.

e The founder and location of the castie
Salah al-Din al-Ayyubi, the founder of the Ayyubid state, has constructed this
castle, to compose a strong defensive front against the crusaders. This castle
stands on the summit of the unique shaped Ras al-Goundi hill that is rising up to
856m above the sea level, and rises 156 m above the plain land around from all
sides. The construction began in 1183 A.D and accomplished in 1187 A.D, that
date corresponds to the Hegira date that is inscribed over the castle's portal.

® The castle planning

This castle looks as an irregular rectangular, moving into two directions, north-
east and south-west. lts southern sides end in a semi-hexagonal shape. The
castle's sides Ranges between 150 - 200 meters in length and the most width of
a hundred meters. The castle's outer walls are about two meters thick. Its
comners are fortified with strong supporters. It is occupying a strategic location
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over an independent mountain's summit, flanked from North and North West

sides with a trench of five or six meters in width, filled with water 80 increases
the castle's safety. .

The castle's wall encircles several rooms for multiple purposes. Of these are
kitchens, residential rooms for the garrison men, bathes, besides other daily life
purposes. The castle's courtyard encloses several buildings for various
purposes, including the lobby of a flat (50 x 60 meters) depth of five meters
below ground level and may have been a warehouse for supplies, As well as an
unroofed mosque. There is also a water cistern sculpted within the hill on which
is a tank containing two opening to insert and withdraw water.

Although the castle was located over an independent mountain's summit,
however, a little part — the northern part of the eastern side- of this mountain is
gradually siopes down, so could easily be climbed. That is the reason for having
a water trench around. In front of the main entrance, the trench is semi square,

with smoothed unclimbed sides. Over the trench there is a movable bndge the
remnants of which still exist.

e The main gate

The ascending route that leads to the castle, terminate with the main entrance
that is preceded with a trench and the movable bridge above. This bridge leads
directly to a small portal, and then there is an ascending nine steps staircase,
leads to a vestibule, which connects both the small —first- portal and the large-
second- one. This portal opening is crested with a straight arch. of ten joggled
voussoirs, with a central circle, inscribed with recently added inscription of
God's name 4. Over the portal's arch, is a rectangular stone inscribed in its
center with the main gate and the two towers' foundation text, reads as follows:

The first line RVCO AL | P NS | AN\ . e

The second line cpll e Jm\.x!\ LY g ella it 2l

The third line )us [ el 5 a2l ldabas 4 i
The fourth fine el cuasal nal s oo ¢ i

The fifth line  wdl jpall 3 _)\,\Al! QU g cpa o e

The sixth line O S8 ) O el i s pzalldl

The seventh line PR VR SPRAL T BT
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The eighth line  glenad g ol g G0 s AN _
‘The entrance's opening is flanked with two semi circular towers. The northern
ore protrudes externally with 3 m; however the second tower profrudes only to

2.50 m. This portal's opening leads to a rectangular vestibule, roofed with a
- barrel shaped vault with a semi circular arch.

The castle's walls and towers

- The castle's western wall encloses five towers, these are the northwest fower,
the western tower, south west tower that is a corner one overlooks the castle's
western and southern walls, the large southern tower that is the castle's largest
square iower, and another southern tower. '

- The castle's eastern wall begins with the circular southeast tower, continued
- until-the northeast-tower. The wall extends to 129.85 m length, a distance that

. rencloses seven towers; these. are the southeast circular, tower, a tower to the
~horth of the previous. tower, other four alternating towers, beside the northeast

--tower that is a circular corner tower.” R e
The castle's northern wall act as the castle's main fagade encloses five

towers, of which two are circular ones.

« e oo The:Castle's Supplements

.. = The castle's prayer niche - L o

. Itis located to the east of the smal| cistern and to the west of the castle's mill.
“:According 10 .the foundation text, it is dated back to Zu al-Qe'da 578 H /
- February — March 1183 AD.- .. .. -

¢+ -+ The small cistern . 7 e » S
. This cistern is located between the mosque from the western side and the.

prayer niche from the eastern. As recorded in the cistern's foundation text, it
was built in Rajab 581 H / September — October 1185 A.D.
- The large mosque !

This mosque is the most intact of the castle's parts, which still keeping its
original beauty. It has been built over the large cistern, cut in the rock, where is
the castle was erected, all of which are apparent. »
The northwest wall encloses the mosque's main entrance. At the western pait of
the northern facade are the-remnants. of . the .minaret's pedestal. The
southeastern facade has a portal; leads to the cistern below the mosque. Over
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the portal, there was the mosque's and the cistern's foundation text written in
Ayyubid naskhi calligraphy of 11 hnes reads as foliows:- -

The first line (ol Gan N &8 aaay)
The second linexss Uy Je it e
The third linelll ¢lldi LY 5. @l &t als

The fourth line  ~ (U)4abu gl 5w Al 22ba

The fifth line ol Qi cpaladiy Syt
The sixth line 5 goeall 1% yac il
The seventh line (1} aSiaw s 0 (Ao & el auln

The eighth line il Jalall g pealilt

The ninth line D 4B S g o gl

The tenth line (&) Lo (sed ol 5 il 43 Jipd

The eleventh line Al e el g Aaall A Jhey

Other Supplements of the Castle are the small mosque, the large cistern, the

mill and its supplements, the rock cut hall, the prison or crop storehouse the
bathroom and several residential supplements

ll- Jordon castles

Ajloun Castle (Qal'at al-Raabad)

Military works of Salah al-din al-Ayyubi didn't restricted to Egypt, but he had a
military stra’tegic perspective that he realized several defense lines against the
crusaders in Syria, east of Jordon is of great and intense significance for
Egypt's and the whole Jordon area security, that is originated from the. -strategic
and exceﬂent location that distinguished it.

) The founder of the castle and its location y o
Although Salah al-Din al-Ayyubi is the owner of the military strategy that
required the construction of Ajloun castle (Qalaat er-Raabad), however, his
army commander Ezz al-Din Osama - who was the ruler of kawkap and Ajloun
regions- carried out the constructions of this castle.

The topography of Eastern Jordon where the caStle stands looks as elevated
mounds; the most famous of these is Ouef Mountain where Ajloun city and its
castle stand. To the south of Ajloun city, is a vast desert and plain lands.
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@ Description of the castle
This castle is surrounded from all sides with a rectangular trench, the sides of
which are of variant lengths, the northern and southern sides are 100 meters;
however, the eastern and western sides are about 150 meters in length. These
sides connect together in corners forming vertical angles. Also, s wide varies,
about 13 meters from the northern and eastern sides, 18 meters from the
southern side, and 16 meters from the western side. For the carved rocks,

however, the trench's depth is varying. This trench was filled with water in order
to prevent any one tries to come into it R

Anciently, this trench was filled with water through ditches from the surrounding
area or from the castle's summit where water channels were dug inthe internal
part of rocks. Water was falling” down to this trench throughk sione or
earthenware channels. At the southeast side of the castle's walls, there is a

water tank surrounded with a rectangular area with small channgs to drain
extra water away. '

® The exterior of the castle : o
The castle's entrance is in the eastern side, to the right of which is a tcwer built
of variant sized stones, composed of three stories; with many windows. This is
followed with the eastern wall that was built of limestone, where is an adjacent
tower, with a two lifies inscription, says: B B

Thefirst ling  "chusn onll g3k yualill dllall Glalall LY o ff (g8 23a" '
The second line " wiie ciabia 33 ¢ Seaa il apell ity asle A2 Al dese 3 el el o

According fo this text, this tower's restorations had been achieved during the
reign of sultan an-Nasser Salah al-Din Youssef . ibn Mohammed ibn az-Zaher
Ayyub,; who took over the reign after the death of Sultan as-Saleh Nagem &-Din
Ayyub, who's reigning period was extended between (648 — 699 H / 1250- 1260
A.D). ' o - '

The castle's northern side extends 19 meters fength; composed of 13 courses.
Adjacent to this part, there are several elevated rocks, where the northern wall
of-the tower: that is ‘occupying the central part of the’ castle's northern wall
stands. This castle's wall enclosed neither windows nor arrow slits. The castie's
western side encloses a group of regular and identical sized stones; it encloses
five machicoulis openings of varied width, topped with small arches, and
dominating the castle's southwest side, distributed in different heights. The
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southwestern side of the castle extends about 32 m, with no machicoulis. At the
southern side, there is a tower that is protruding 12 meters out from the wall.
This tower encloses two arrow slit openings. This tower's eastern facade

overlooks the surrounding water well. A three lines text occupied the tower's
first story, says: -

The first line gl 1aa Lal s ) cpan 1 A1 g
The second fine  eakeall jlaliud i 2 o iy &l Ll
The third line + e 5 yde gaal Al el 4

e The Interior Of The Castle
The castle's entrance is located in the northeast facade. It is preceded with a
10, 30 meters wide trench. This entrance is reachable through a'wooden bridge
-of nineteen stone courses- that is leaning on a stone base over the trench's
central part. This bridge was to be raised or brought down according to the

need. Such draw (movable) bridge over the trench, duplicated the trench's
defensive property. S A ‘

The castle's gate is topped with the remnants of a machicoulis —used in pouring
boiled water or oil over the attackers- that was leaning on stone corbels. This
entrance is topped with a vaulted ceiling. Towards the interior; this gate leads to
a 16 meters long vestibule, at the end of which is a 24 steps ascending
staircase. To the entrance's right side, there is an arrow slit, above the ground
level and occupying the southern wall of the entrance’s adjacent fower.
However, on the vestibule left side; there are five machicoulis. = -

At the end of the éntrance — to the right - is another entrance leaning on two
pointed arches, separated from each other with half a meter, employed in
pouring incendiary substances over the attackers. This entrance was to be shut
with an iron portal as a defending mean to prevent any one tries to come into
the castle. The castle has a bent entrance, a type that was usually employed in
military structures, cities' gates, beside some secular structures.

-The eastern courtyard (space) o ‘ -
Itis a space stands between two towers, one of them adjoining the éntrance
and the castle's north eastern tower. This space also encloses the remnants of

a wall that was once dividing this space into three halls, the eastern wall of this
space encloses three arrow slits.
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-The north eastern tower
This tower is entered through its southern wall. In the outer fight side of the
tower; is water well. Both this tower and the one adjoining the entrance are
mostly identical in building substance and the semi-cylindrical vault that covers
their ceilings. The arrow slits in this tower throwing towards the trench's
northeastern angle. Although this tower is 10 meters higher than the first story
level, but there is no floors for halls over the first story. Therefore, it could be

deduced that the main purpose of this tower was for serving the carrier
(homing) pigeon.

~The southern tower

This tower is entered through a vestibule in its western wall. lis fioor is lower
than the portal's, and descended through four steps. This tower composed of
two independent -western and eastern -parts, with an opening conrects both
parts together. The arrow slits in this tower are mostly differing from these in the
castle's eastern side. Here; they -the arrow slits- were built within halis, the
interior front of which was adorned with a stone arch, intended {o faciitate the
defenders' (guardians”) duty. T ’

lli- Syrian Castles

Aleppo Castle

Aleppo (Halab) castle - Pearl of the north of Syria- is located between two
valleys, embraced by al-'Asi and al-Forat Rivers. Historical resources reported
this Arabian city, so one can realize ancient civilizations' breeze that had
passéd over each part of Halab city. )

Halab city witnessed the Arab conquest in 636 A.D during the reign of Seif al-
Dawla alHamadani the founder of al-Hamadania state- by the ammy
commander Abi Oubayda ibn al-Garah. As a result, his city occupied the priority
in history, so became the capital of his state and a center for culture and arts
pioneers. What interests here, is the Ayyubides attention of Halab famous
castle. The army commander Ghazi -son of Salah ak-Din al-Ayyubi - had
restored and fortified both the castle and its surrounding walls. It has been
mentioned that no congueror succeeded in seizing this castle by force. o
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° The castle's foundation

It is one of the marvelous historical structures, and a sign in military fortified
architecture during the medieval epochs with its walls, towers, portals, and -
vestibules. It was constructed in the 8" or 9" century B.C. The castle's recent
description dated it back to the Ayyubide epoch in the 12" century A.D. it was
restored in 1946 A.D and the throne hall was restored in 1973A.D. .

A trench surrounds the castle, of 30 meters in width, and 32 meters in depth.
This trench was filled with water. The castle encloses several towers, bridges,
halls, vestibules, portals, mosques, barracks, mills, and repositories (store
houses). Although a part of this castle has been demolished, but its standing
structures testifies on its safety and immensity.

The Citadel's Planning

Sultan az-Zaher Ghazi ibn Youssef ordered the erection of this castle. It is
ascended by a staircase. It is distinguished with its bending upper side, in the
form that composes neither an archway, nor straight one. Over the portal, there
are finely intertwined black and white stones.

Over these stones, there is a panel inscribed with the castle's founder name.
Over the panel there is a stone cornice, however the portal itself is of two iron
shutters, each composed of four supporters. Both supporters and transoms are
hammered with nails in shape of sun disk shaped large gear. Between each two
supporters, there are iron dividers, forming - 14 cm thickness- rectangles with
horseshoe shape and arrow's tips referring to chivairy. -On both left and right
sides of each rectangle, is a hexagonal shape; with each one is a large gear
shaped nail. And the iron dividers are adorned with rings in shape of sun disk
with rays coming out. Over the door, there is a door latch in each shutter, used
as knocker to conduct sound to within the interior. Moreover, it is used as a
fastening for the door chain.
The Citadel has an elliptical base with a length of 450m and width
of 325m, at the top, this ellipse measures 285m by 160m with the
height of this slanting foundation measuring 50m. The entire
mound was covered with large blocks of gleaming limestone that
unified the built structure with the hill thus increasing its visual
scale. It was also surrounded by a moat filled with water to protect
+ against intruders: The Citadel hovers over.the city in a uniqueness
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that rivals the larger Citadel of Cairo and the more massive
Citadel of Damascus. '
-Although the Citadel is .an. Islamic landmark, archeological digs
‘have uncovered Rorvan‘and Byzantine ruins dating back to the
9th century BC. The Citadél was ofiginally a Neo-Hitiite acropolis
built on a natural hill; this' provided a strategic site for a military -
' '--{*’r'ortress to guard and protect the suwoundmg agncultural areas.
~ . The citadel through ades :
. Seif al-Dawla (944-967), the first Hamdanid ruler of Aieppo built
" the foriress and used the citadel as a military center of power over -
his region, Zangid ruler Nur al-Din (1147-1174) fortified the citadel
and added some structures such as the Small Mosque of the
Citadel. But it wasn't until Ayyubid period during the reign of the
Sultan al-Zahir al-Ghazi of Aleppo  (1186-1216) that the Citadel
. .went-through major reconstruction, fortification and addition of
7. .new structures that create the complex of the Citadel in its current
-~ form. During the first decade-of the thirteenth c;entury the citadel
evolved into a palatial . c&ty ‘that included functions ranging from
residential, religious, military installations and supporting elements = -
"« -suth-as water cisterns and granaries.
» A particularly significant addition during al- Ghazi's reign fis:the -
“Great Mosgue of the Citadel that was built in 1214, Its situation at
_ the highest point of the -Citadel, with its towering minaret. that is
~.21m high, extended both the citadels visibility and its defense to
“iaogreater distances. Here the minaret begins to play a: religious and
“military. role; this duality merges the wrtues of power and pnety in
the iconof the Islamic faith. ‘ ‘
1 The most prominent renova’uon is the entrances block tha‘t al-
. Ghazi rebuilt in 1213. Eight large arches structure the bndge that -
leads up to the Citadel over the moat. It is punctuated at the =
i bottom by a defense gate with two towers and at the top of the =~
~ramped- bridge by the Gate of. Serpents and* the Gate ofthe Two .~
Lions. A complex defense mode was deveioped in the seq'uence‘ .
of-movernent into the Citadel, as” perpetrators’ would have fo . .
_:_;:,?,:azpenetrate 3 iron doors and change direction 6 times throUgh a,

series  of 90 degree abrupt tums while being subjected fo hot

ligquids being poured throdgh the slrt opemngs on the upper. ﬂoors
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These defense strategles made the Citadel of Aleppo one of the

hardest forts to conquer in the region. v '

In 1415 the Mamiuk governor of Aleppo, prince Seif al- Dm Jakam

was authorized to rebuild the Citadel after the Mongol invasion of

Timur in 1410. His most important addition was the new Mamiuk

palace that rose higher than the two entrance towers. The

Ayyubld palace was almost completely abandoned during ‘this

- period. During the Ottoman period, the military role of the Citadel

as a defense foriress slowly diminished as the city began to grow

outside the city walls and was taking its form as a commercial -

metropolis. Large restoration projects tock place after the Citadel

was heavily damaged in the earthquake of 1828. These -

restoration operations contlnued throughout the next century untll R

the present,

The Castle's importance BRI
Halab castie was a place for civilian struggle, demolished seVera| tlmes under
the reign of the Romans, the crusaders, and the Mongols. In later times; it was
restored by the Moslems like the Nourien, the Salahdins, and the Mamiuks. This
castle's historical importance stems from the inscriptions that testnfy on the*’
predecessors' civilization. : g
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The Plates

| A part of Al-Gabal castle's southern wall

i Burg al Makar in the casfle's southern wall

' il Burg Kirkeliyan in fne castle’s southern wall

{"Burg al-Hadad, with machicoluis openings

|| The upper story of Burg al-Hadad with the machicoiuis openings

Il The northern anclosure of Al-Gabal castle

i The Bab al-Mudarrag

1Burg al-imam or Bab al-Qarafa
Il Burg as-Sofa

i Burg al-Matar

i Burg el-Mubaliat

|l Burg al-Elwa
|l Burg ar-Ramla

| Burg al-Mugusar

1 Burg as-Sahara

Burg al-Hadad

Il The castle of Salah el-Din al-Ayyubi in Fara'un Island

| ™The external wall surrounding the castie

il Horizontal projection of the mosque of Salan el-Din's castle in Fara'oun Island

| Horizontal projection for the bath of salah el-Din al-Ayyubi cestle in Fara'oun island
|| Ras El-Goundi Castle

[ The Plan Of Ras El-Gound! Castle

A general view of Ajloun Castle

I A vertical projection of Ajloun Castle

0A vertical projection of Ajloun castie with its three stories

A vertical projection of the first story of Ajloun castle

A vertical projection of the second story of Ajfoun castle

A vertical projection of the third story of Ajloun castle

| Aleppo castle in ancient times

' The main entrance of Aleppo castle

The historical text of the Aleppo Castle

i The Plan of Aleppo Castle's Enfrance
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Al-Gabal Castle

Plate (1) .
The castle's northern enclosure: east side, Burg al-Muballat, Burg al- Mugqusar,
N and Burg al-lmam
Creswell (K.A.C), The Muslim architecture of Egypt,

+  Plate (2) ~
Southern enclosure; south fagade looking over Mugattam Gate
Creswell (KA.C), op.cit
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Plate (3)
Burg al- Mattar, outer side
Creswell (K.A.C), op.cit

Plate (4)

Northern enclosure; south fagade showing MUqat’tam tower, Burg Soffa, Burg
al-Elwa, and Burg Kerkyalan
Creswell (K.A.C), op.cit
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Plate (5)
Burg al- Hadad with guns' openings that were added durmg the French
campaign
Creswell (K.A.C), op.cit

Plate (6)
The upper story of Burg al-Hadad with the machicoluis openings that
were widened during the French campaign
Creswell (K.A.C), op.cit
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Plate (7)
The northern enclosure

" Plate (8)

) \ Plate (9)
The Bab al-Mudarrag Burg al-lmam or Bab al-Qarafa
Creswell (K.A.C), op.cit
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Plate (10)
Burg as-Sofa
Creswell (K._A._C); op.cit

Plate (11) plate (12) -
Burg al-Matar Burg eMuballat
o Creswell (K.A.C), op.ci S
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Plate (13)
Burg al-Elwa
Creswell (K.A.C), op.cit

plate (15)

Plate (14) -
Burg al-Muqusar

Burg ar-Ramla

Creswell (K.A.C), op.cit
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Plate (16) Plate(17)
Burg as-Sahara Burg al-Hadad

Creswell (K.A.C), op.cit
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Fara'oun Castle

Plate (18)

The castle of Salah el-Din al-Ayyubi
((_')..1.:3\ C)\.mwcuy_)é'é‘)g" :

in Fara'un Island
TV

Plate (19)
The external wall surrounding the castle in Fara'un Island
(Q_.gﬂ\ zla P CIPIR-SE (R SV N PARTIV B )
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Plate (20)
Horizontal projection of the mosque of Salah al-Din al-Ayyubi castle in Fara'oun
fsland
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Plate (21)
Horizontal projection for the bath of Salah el-Din al-Ayyubi castle in Fara'oun
island
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Horh Sesend Grgnaion

Sadr (Raas al-Goundi) Castle

Plate (22)
Ras El-Goundi Castle
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Plate (23)
The Plan of Ras El-Goundi Castle
(G\J}Hl 3);_},; ‘Lh-'n'l (_.,A 295\_!“ 3».;\-\);..“ Q\.Ag.n.a'_\ﬂ\ ELA e CAL\@ L;Q\a.u)
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Ajloun Castle

Plate (24)
A general view of Ajloun Castle with the stairs and wooden
balustrade leading to the entrance

Plate (25)
A vertical projection of Ajloun Castle
(E.JJGALJU.) ¢ M'wtﬂdﬁé‘:@&‘ﬁ)&%ﬁé“bﬁ 3 yasa)
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Plate (26)

A veﬁlcal projection of Ajloun oasﬂe with its three stories
(John C.N, Medieval Ajtun)

Plate (27)
A vertical projection of the first story of Ajloun castle

(O T ¢ s o uSi)
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Plate (28)

A vertical projection of the second story of Ajloun castle
(U.)_)s” J\ﬂ 3 a—‘\JJU: }u&y)

Plate (29)
A vertical projection of the third story of Ajloun castle
(0PN DU ¢ i pla LSSy
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Aleppo Castle

Aleppo.castle.ina
N

Plate.
The main entrance of Aleppo castle
(Y497 gish e €34 2aedl ¢ U’_Uxht\.\;n)
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Plate (32)
Historical texts of Aleppo Castle
(Raladl 4208 83, A1 gl o JalS il M)

Plate (33)
The Plan of Aleppo Castle's Entrance
Gonnella, Julia, the citadel of Aleppo)(
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